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UNITED STATES DISTRICf COURT 
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICf OF ILLINOIS 

EASTERN DIVISION 

FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION, 

Plaintiff, 

v. 

ECOMMERCE MERCHANTS, LLC, 
a Florida limited liability company, 
also d/b/a Superior Affiliate Management, 

CREST A PILLSBURY, 
individually, and as an officer and managing 
member ofECOMMERCE MERCHANTS, LLC, 

JAN-PAUL DIAZ, 
individually, and as an officer and managing 
member ofECOMMERCE MERCHANTS, LLC, 

JOSHUA BREWER, 
individually, and as an officer and manager of 
ECOMMERCE MERCHANTS, LLC, and 

DANIEL ST ANITSKI, 
individually, and as an officer and manager of 
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�l�j�f�~�"�4� TEMPORARY RESTRAINING ORDER 
WITH 0 R EQUITABLE RELIEF AND ORDER TO SHOW 

CAUSE WHY A PRELIMINARY INJUNCTION SHOULD NOT ISSUE 

Plaintiff, the Federal Trade Commission ("FTC" or "Commission''), having filed its 

Complaint for Permanent Itljunction and Other Equitable Relief in this matter, pursuant to 

Section 13(b) of the Federal Trade Commission Act ("FTC Act"), 15 U.S.C. § 53(b), and having 

moved for a Temporary Restraining Order with Other Equitable Relief, and an Order to Show 
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Cause Why a Preliminary Injunction Should Not Issue pursuant to Rule 65 of the Federal Rules 

of Civil Procedure, and the Court having considered the Complaint, declarations, exhibits, and 

memorandum of law filed in support of such motion, and now being advised in the premises, 

fmds that: 

FINDINGS 

1. This Court has jurisdiction over the subject matter of this case, and there is good 

cause to believe it will have jurisdiction over the parties. 

2. Venue lies properly with this Court. 

3. There is good cause to believe that Defendants Ecommerce Merchants, LLC, 

Cresta Pillsbury, Jan-Paul Diaz, Joshua Brewer, and Daniel Stanitski ("Defendants") have 

engaged in, and are likely to engage in the future in, acts and practices that violate Section 5(a) 

of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(a), and that the Commission is therefore likely to prevail on the 

merits of this action. 

4. There is good cause to believe that immediate and irreparable damage to the 

Court's ability to grant effective final relief for consumers in the on 
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6. No security is required of any agency of the United States for the issuance of a 

temporary restraining order. See Fed. R. Civ. P. 65(c). 

DEFINITIONS 

For purposes of this Temporary Restraining Order ("Order"), the following definitions 

shall apply: 

I. "Asset" or "Assets" means any legal or equitable interest in, right to, or claim to, 

any real or personal property, including, but not limited to, "goods," "instruments," 

"equipment," "fixtures," "general intangibles," "inventory," "checks," or "notes" (as these terms 

are defined in the Uniform Commercial Code), lines of credit, chattels, leaseholds, contracts, 

mail or other deliveries, shares of stock, lists of consumer names, accounts, credits, premises, 

receivables, funds, and all cash, wherever located. 

2. "Assisting others" includes, but is not limited to: (a) performing customer 

service functions, including, but not limited to, receiving or responding to consumer complaints; 

(b) formulating or providing, or arranging for the formulation or provision of, any sales script or 

other marketing material; (c) providing names of, or assisting in the generation of, potential 

customers, including, but not limited to, the sending oftext messages or email messages; 

(d) verifYing, processing, fulfilling, or arranging for the fulfillment of orders; (e) performing or 

providing marketing, billing, or collection services of any kind, including, but not limited to, 

creating, hosting, or maintaining websites, or recruiting affiliates; or (f) acting as an officer or 

director of a business entity. 

3. "Individual Defendants" means Cresta Pillsbury, Jan-Paul Diaz, Joshua Brewer, 

and Daniel Stanitski, and by whatever other names each may be known. 
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4. "Corporate Defendant" means Ecommerce Merchants, LLC, also doing 

business as Superior Affiliate Management, and its successors and assigns, as well as any 

subsidiaries, and any fictitious business entities or business names created or used by this entity. 

5. "Defendants" means all of the Individual Defendants and the Corporate 

Defendant, individually, collectively, or in any combination. 

6. "Document" or "Documents" means any materials listed in Federal Rule of 

Civil Procedure 34(a) and includes writings, drawings, graphs, charts, photographs, audio and 

video recordings, computer records, and other data compilations from which information can be 

obtained and translated, if necessary, into reasonably usable form through detection devices. A 

draft or nonidentical copy is a separate Document within the meaning of the term. 

7. "Electronic data host" means any person or entity that stores, hosts, or otherwise 

maintains electronically stored information or computer equipment. 

8. "Internet service provider" means a company that provides third parties with 

access to the Internet. 

9. "Material" means likely to affect a person's choice of, or conduct regarding, 

goods or 

legal tha rFeer"l 
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advertisement or promotion of a commercial product or service (including the content on an 

Internet website operated for commercial purposes). 

L 

PROHIBITED BUSINESS ACTIVITIES 
RELATING TO ANY PRODUCT, SERVICE, OR PROGRAM 

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED that Defendants, and their officers, agents, servants, 

employees, and attorneys, and all other persons in active concert or participation with any of 

them, who receive actual notice of this Order by personal service or otherwise, whether acting 

directly or through any trust, corporation, subsidiary, division, or other device, or any of them, in 

connection with the advertising, marketing, promotion, offering for sale, or sale of any product, 

service, or program, are hereby temporarily restrained and enjoined from: 

A. Misrepresenting, or assisting others in misrepresenting, expressly or by 

implication, any material fact, including, but not limited to, that consumers have won a contest 

or have been specifically selected to receive a gift or prize that is "free" or without cost or 

obligation; 

B. Failing to disclose or disclose adequately to consumers the material terms and 

conditions of any offer, including, but not limited to:Tj
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II. 

PROHIBmON ON MAKING UNAUTHORIZED OR 
UNSOLICITED 
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benefit of, in whole or in part, Defendants, or in the actual or constructive possession of 

Defendants, other than those assets that are used for actual, ordinary, and necessary business or 

living expenses that Defendants reasonably incur. 

B. The assets affected by this Section shall include both existing assets and assets 

acquired after the effective date of this Order. 

C. Notwithstanding Section III.A above, each Defendant may withdraw, transfer, 

encumber, or otherwise dissipate assets in excess of two thousand dollars ($2,000) per calendar 

month only with prior written agreement by counsel for the Commission, or prior approval by 

the Court. 

D. To the extent that Defi:ndants withdraw, transfer, encumber, or otherwise 

dissipate assets pursuant to Section III.A of this Order, they shall provide an accounting of their 

expenses to counsel for the Commission for each calendar month. 

IV. 

FINANCIAL REPORTS AND ACCOUNTING 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that at least three (3) calendar days prior to the 

preliminary injunction hearing in this matter, and in no event later than ten (I 0) calendar days 

after entry of this Order, Defendants shall each provide to counsel for the Commission: 

A. A completed financial statement accurate as of the date of entry of this Order, in 

the form provided as Attachment A for individuals and Attachment B for businesses, as the 

case may be, signed under penalty of perjury. The financial statements shall include assets held 

outside the territory of the United States, shall be accurate as of the date of the entry of this 

Order, and shall be verified under oath. Defendants shall attach to these completed financial 
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statements copies of all local, state, provincial, and federal income and property tax returns, with 

attachments and schedules, as called for by the instructions to the financial statements; and 

B. A detailed accounting, verified under oath, of: 

1. the names of all products, services or programs advertised, marketed, 

promoted, offered for sale, sold, or 
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VL 

PRESERVATION OF RECORDS 
AND EQUIPMENT; REPORT OF NEW BUSINESS ACTIVITY 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Defendants and their officers, agents, servants, 

employees, and attorneys, and all other persons in active concert or participation with any of 

them who receive actual notice of this Order by personal service or otherwise, whether acting 

directly or through any trust, corporation, subsidiary, division, or other device, or any of them, 

are hereby temporarily restrained and enjoined from: 

A. Failing to create and maintain books, records, accounts, bank statements, current 

accountants' reports, general ledgers, general journals, cash receipts trust, 

or 

or 
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D. Creating, operating, or exercising any control over any business entity, whether 

newly-formed or previously inactive, including any partnership, limited partnership, 
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B. Demand the production of Documents from any person, whether or not a per Tj
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xm. 
DURATION OF THE TEMPORARY RES1RAINING ORDER 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the Temporary Restraining Order granted herein 

shall expire on /11 AR C II I 8 , 2013, at.S r.m. (Central Time), unless, within 

such time, for good cause shown, the Order is extended, or unless, as to any Defendant, the 

Defendant consents that it should be extended for a longer period of time. 

XIV. 

ORDER TO SHOW CAUSE REGARDING PRELIMINARY INJUNCTION 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, pursuant to Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 65(b), that 2 0 1 3 ,  P R E d C 0 . 2  5 0 6 . 8 9  Ttbeor ethes 6Cour, ( C o  h e  �

� , . (� l o r  �  h e  tDirkentFederal 6Cour,ouls, 
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day prior to the preliminary injunction hearing in this matter, provided that service shall be 

performed by personal or overnight delivery, by electronic filing, by electronic mail, or by 

facsimile, and documents shall be delivered so that they shall be received by the other parties no 

later than 4:00p.m. (Central Time) on the appropriate dates listed in this Section. 

XVI. 

MOTION FOR LIVE TESTIMONY; WITNESS IDENTIFICATION 

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the question of whether this Court should enter a 

preliminary injunction pursuant to Rule 65 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure enjoining the 

Defendants during the pendency of this action shall be resolved on the pleadings, declarations, 
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